
City of Kelowna
Regular Council Meeting

AGENDA
 

Tuesday, August 25, 2015

6:00 pm

Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street
Pages

1. Call to Order

2. Reaffirmation of Oath of Office

The Oath of Office will be read by Councillor Sieben.

3. Confirmation of Minutes 1 - 14

Public Hearing - August 11, 2015
Regular Meeting - August 11, 2015

4. Bylaws Considered at Public Hearing

4.1 1285 Graham Road, BL11126 (Z15-0029) - W-Ten Development Ltd. 15 - 15

To give Bylaw No. 11126 second and third readings in order to rezone the
subject property to construct a semi-detached dwelling.

4.2 1457 Highway 33 East, BL11129 (Z15-0020) - Francesco Guarini 16 - 16

To give Bylaw No. 11129 second and third readings in order to rezone the
subject property to facilitate the development of a second dwelling.

5. Notification of Meeting

The City Clerk will provide information as to how the following items on the Agenda
were publicized.

6. Liquor License Application Reports

6.1 315 Lawrence Avenue, LL15-0012 - City of Kelowna 17 - 38

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
liquor license application to come forward.
To seek Council's support for a Liquor Primary License for an existing Food
Primary establishment located on the subject property.



7. Development Permit, Development Variance Permit and Heritage Alteration Permit
Reports

7.1 902 Clifton Road, BL11107 (Z15-0008) - Dan & Mary Cresswell 39 - 39

To adopt Bylaw No. 11107 in order to rezone the subject property to allow for
a carriage house.

7.2 902 Clifton Road, DP15-0057 & DVP15-0056 - Dan & Mary Cresswell 40 - 51

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To consider the form and character, and a variance, for the conversion of an
existing Accessory Building to a Carriage House.

7.3 277 Mathison Place, HAP15-0005 - David & Claire Beedle 52 - 71

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To consider a heritage Alteration Permit for the form and character of
additions to an existing single detached house and avariances to reduce the
minimum front and flanking street side yard setbacks.

7.4 505 Doyle Avenue, DVP15-0168 - Doyle Avenue Holdings Ltd. 72 - 85

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To vary several regulations in the C7 zone for the subject property.

8. Reminders

9. Termination



1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 11126 
Z15-0029 – W-Ten Development Ltd., Inc. No. BC0720702  

1285 Graham Road 

 

 
A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000". 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 

1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended by changing the zoning 
classification of Lot 78, Section 22, Township 26, ODYD, Plan 19162 located on Graham 
Road, Kelowna, B.C., from the RU1 – Large Lot Housing zone to the RU6 – Two Dwelling 
Housing zone. 

 
2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and 

from the date of adoption. 
 
 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 10th day of August, 2015. 
 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the 
 
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 
 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this 
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 
 

 
City Clerk 

 
 

15



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 11129 
Z15-0020 – Francesco Guarini  

1457 Highway 33 East 

 

 
A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000". 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 

1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended by changing the zoning 
classification of Lot 2, Section 13, Township 26, ODYD, Plan 23518 Except Plan KAP 
86904 located on Highway 33 East, Kelowna, B.C., from the A1 – Agriculture 1 zone to 
the RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing zone. 

 
2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and 

from the date of adoption. 
 
 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 10th  day of August, 2015. 
 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the 
 
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 
 
 
Approved under the Transportation Act 
 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
(Approving Officer-Ministry of Transportation) 
 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this 
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 
 

 
City Clerk 

 
 

16



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: August 25, 2015 

RIM No. 0930-60 

To: City Manager 

From: Community Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (LK) 

Application: LL15-0012 Owner: City of Kelowna 

Address: 315 Lawrence Avenue Applicant: 
Marni Manegre 

(Wine & Art Kelowna Inc.) 

Subject: Liquor License Application  

Existing OCP Designation: MXR – Mixed Use Residential/Commercial 

Existing Zone: C7 – Central Business Commercial 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council directs Staff to forward the following recommendation to the Provincial Liquor 
Control and Licensing Branch (LCLB): 

In accordance with Section 53 of the Liquor Control and Licensing Regulation and Council Policy 
#359, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

1. Council recommends support of an application from Wine & Art Kelowna Inc.for a liquor 
primary license for Lot A, District Lot 139, Osoyoos Division Yale District, Plan 39412 
except Air Space Plan KAP86153, located at 315 Lawrence Avenue, Kelowna, BC for the 
following reasons: 

 The application complies with Council Policy #359 guidelines for the siting and 
density of Liquor Primary Establishments, it is a modest size liquor primary 
establishment, caters to a niche market new to Kelowna and no concerns have 
been raised by the RCMP. 

2. Council’s comments on the Liquor Control & Licensing Branch (LCLB)’s prescribed 
considerations are as follows: 

a) The location of the establishment: 

The property is located within the Downtown core and is suitable for the proposed 
small-scale Liquor Primary license. 

b) The proximity of the establishment to other social or recreational facilities and public 
buildings: 

No negative impact on surrounding facilities/ buildings is anticipated. 

17



LL15-0012– Page 2 

 
 

c) The person capacity and hours of liquor service of the establishment: 

The capacity and hours are deemed appropriate based on other establishments in the 
immediate area. 

d) The number and market focus or clientele of liquor primary license establishments 
within a reasonable distance of the proposed location: 

The size and focus of the establishment would compliment the existing establishments 
in the Downtown area. 

e) The impact on the community in the immediate vicinity of the establishment: 

The potential for noise would be compatible with surrounding land uses. 

f) The impact on the community if the application is approved: 

The proposed license would add to the continued development of a safew, vibrant 
Downtown area. 

3. Council’s comments of the views of residents area as contained within the minutes of the 
meeting at which the application was considered by Council. The methods used to gather 
views of residents were as per Council Policy #359 “Liquor Licensing Policy & Procedures.” 

2.0 Purpose  

To seek Council’s support for a Liquor Primary License for an existing Food Primary establishment 
located on the subject property. 

3.0 Urban Planning 

Council Policy #359 specifies guidelines for the siting and density of Liquor Primary 
Establishments. These parameters are designed to help control the density of late-night 
establishments with a focus on alcohol (nightclubs, pubs, etc). Given the location of 
establishments in the area, the application complies with Policy #359. 

This application represents a modest sized liquor primary establishment. The business will cater 
to patrons who wish to participate in art classes, paint on-site, view local art and consume food 
and beverage. The focus is on wine and art education.Patrons are able to attend a class, reserve 
an easel to paint at their leisure or just come in for food & drink. 

The target market is Kelowna’s downtown working professionals. The focus is on the female 
market with the average ages being 35 – 65 years. The site will provide a safe environment for 
women to learn about local wine and art. As there are no televisions provided, the proposed 
liquor primary license will provide an artistic outlet for the average person which is lacking in 
Kelowna. Given the small scale and niche market, the business operation meets the intent of the 
City fostering the provision of facilities which diversify the selection of venues and entertainment 
opportunites throughout the Downtown. 

Given the above considerations, Community Planning Staff is supportive of the proposed Liquor 
Primary establishment. In addition, the RCMP have no concerns with the proposal. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

18



LL15-0012– Page 3 

 
 

An application has been forwarded by the licensee to the Provincial Liquor Control and Licensing 
Branch (LCLB) for their approval. Procedurally, all new Liquor Primary license requests require 
Local Government comment. 

4.2 Project Description 

The applicant has requested a Liquor Primary (LP) license in order to create a small liquor 
primary establishment in the existing food primary establishment.The LP is being requested to 
allow for partron participation in the form of painting. As the seating capacity is under 100 
patrons, the Liquor Primary (Minor) use does not require a rezoning. There are no changes to the 
interior or exterior of the building. Additionally, there are no other Liquor Primary – minor 
establishments on neighbouring properties.The draft occupant load shows a maximum occupant 
load of 50 persons. 

Proposed License Summary 
Proposed Hours of Sale: 

 Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

Open 10:00am 11:00am 11:00am 11:00am 11:00am 11:00am 10:00am 

Close 12:00am 12:00am 12:00am 12:00am 12:00am 12:00am 12:00am 

4.3 Site Context 

The subject property is located at the intersection of Lawrence Avenue and Water Street on the 
main floor in the north west corner of the Chapamn Parkade. The unit address is 315 Lawrence 
Avenue. 

Subject Property Map: 305 - 375 Lawrence Avenue 

19



LL15-0012– Page 4 

 
 

 

5.0 Current Development Policies  

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Entertainment Venues.1 Within designated Urban Centres, encourage private-sector provision of 
facilities which diversify the selection of venues and entertainment opportunities throughout the 
city. 

Downtown.2 The City of Kelowna recognizes that a unique, attractive, thriving and livable 
downtown is strategically important to Kelowna’s overall prosperity and success. Towards this 
end, the City will plan and manage the Downtown as a single and special entity and will take a 
proactive, comprehensive, integrated and collaborative approach towards providing services and 
infrastructure, delivering programs, and developing a supportive regulatory and financial 
environment. 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

No Concerns 

6.2 Bylaw Services 

                                                      
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.17.1 (Development Process Chapter). 
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 8.9.2 (Economic Development Chapter). 

SUBJECT 
PROPERT
Y 

Liquid Zoo 

Blue Gator 

Habitat 

Level Nightclub 

Pilgrim & Pearl 

Crafty Kitchen 
& Bar 

Doc Willoughby’s 

Kelly O’Bryans 

Tonics Pub & Grill 

Micro Bites 
& RauDZ 

20



LL15-0012– Page 5 

 
 

No Concerns 

6.3 Fire Department 

1) The fire department has no issues with this liquor license as long as this bistro does not 
cook anything that may produce grease laden vapors. This bistro does NOT currently have 
a commercial kitchen installed so should the menu change to include such foods, a 
commercial kitchen shall be installed. 

6.4 R.C.M.P. 

No Concerns 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:  May 27, 2015 
Date LCLB Package Received:  July 7, 2015 

Report prepared by: 

     
Lydia Korolchuk, Planner 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Planning Supervisor 
 

Reviewed by:    Todd Cashin, Suburban and Rural Planning Manager 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Ryan Smith, Community Planning Department Manager 
 
 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 
Occupant Load Floor Plan 
LCLB Application Package 
Applicant Letter of Intent 

21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 11107 
Z15-0008 – Danny and Mary Cresswell  

902 Clifton Road 

 

 
A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000". 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 

1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended by changing the zoning 
classification of Lot 20, Section 30, Township 26, ODYD, Plan 11261 located on Clifton 
Road, Kelowna, B.C., from the RU1 – Large Lot Housing zone to the RU1c – Large Lot 
Housing with Carriage House zone. 

 
2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and 

from the date of adoption. 
 
 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 22nd day of June, 2015. 
 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the 14th day of July, 2015. 
 
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 14th day of July, 2015. 
 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this 
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

39



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: August 25, 2015 

RIM No. 0940-40 

To: City Manager 

From: Community Planning Department (LK) 

Application: DP15-0057 & DVP15-0056 Owner: Dan & Mary Cresswell 

Address: 902 Clifton Road Applicant: Dan & Mary Cresswell 

Subject: Development Permit & Development Variance Permit Applications 

Existing OCP Designation: S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: RU1 – Large Lot Housing 

Proposed Zone: RU1c – Large Lot Housing with Carriage House 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT final adoption of Rezoning Bylaw No. 11107 be considered by Council; 

AND THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Permit No. DP15-0057 for Lot 20 
Section 30 Township 26 ODYD Plan 11261, located at 902 Clifton Rd, Kelowna, BC subject to the 
following: 

1. The dimensions and siting of the building and landscaping to be constructed on the land 
be in general accordance with Schedule ‘A’; 

2. The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land, be in general 
accordance with Schedule ‘B’; 

AND THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP15-0056, for 
Lot 20 Section 30 Township 26 ODYD Plan 11261 located at 902 Clifton Road, Kelowna, BC; 

AND THAT variances to the following section of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 

 Section 13.1.7(c): RU1 – Large Lot Housing - Other Regulations 

To vary the distance from a Carriage House to the principal dwelling from 3.0m permitted 
to 2.08m proposed. 

AND FURTHER THAT this Development Permit and Development Variance Permit be valid for two 
(2) years from the date of Council approval with no opportunity to extend. 

  

40



DP15-0057 & DVP15-0056 – Page 2 

 
 

2.0 Purpose  

To consider the form and character, and a variance, for the conversion of an existing Accessory 
Building to a Carriage House. 

3.0 Community Planning  

Community Planning Staff support the building separation variance to allow the conversion of an 
existing Accessory Building to a Carriage House. The form and character of the Carriage House 
fits within the local context and the building meets all other zoning regulations. Any increased 
life safety requirements will be addressed with the Building Permit application. 

The parcel is located within the Permanent Growth Boundary. Policies within the Official 
Community Plan (OCP) support sensitive integration into existing neighbourhoods where services 
are already in place and densification can easily be accommodated. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

The Accessory Building was constructed in 1981 with an addition in 1999. Applications for the 
Carriage House were applied for with Z03-0069, DVP04-0054. All readings for the Zoning 
application were rescinded and due to inactivity the applications were closed. Currently, 
complaint file #299698 with Bylaw Services has prompted the current applications to legalize the 
dwelling unit, which was constructed without the appropriate permits in place. 

4.2 Project Description 

The Carriage House is located along the north side property line of the subject parcel. The 
existing Accessory Building has a workshop in the east portion of the building and a dwelling unit 
in the west portion. The building finishes match the existing primary dwelling with vertical siding 
and stone veneer accents along the front of the buildings. Private open space is provided on the 
west side of the accessory building.  

The parcel provides one parking stall within the attached garage of the primary dwelling, and 
two parking stalls on a large driveway area to meet the Bylaw parking requirements for both the 
existing dwelling and the Carriage House.  

The zoning requirements for a Carriage House vary from those required for an Accessory Building. 
A variance is required to allow the Carriage House to be located 2.08 m from the primary 
dwelling. The Zoning Bylaw requires a 3.0 m minimum separation from the primary dwelling. The 
requirement for an Accessory Building is 1.0 m minimum separation and the original building was 
constructed to exceed this requirement. All other zoning regulations for a Carriage House have 
been met.  

In fulfillment of Council Policy No. 367 regarding public consultation, the applicant undertook 
neighbour consultation by providing proposal application packages to each of the adjacent 
parcels within 50 0 of the subject parcel.  

4.3 Site Context 

The subject property is located on the west side of Clifton Road in the Glenmore/Clifton area of 
Kelowna. 

  

41



DP15-0057 & DVP15-0056 – Page 3 

 
 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU1 – Large Lot Housing Residential 

East RU1 – Large Lot Housing Residential 

South RU1 – Large Lot Housing Residential 

West RU1 – Large Lot Housing Vacant 

 

Subject Property Site Photo: 902 Clifton Rd 
South Elevation Carriage House location Variance required for Separation Distance 
 

 
 

Subject Property Map: 902 Clifton Rd 

 
  

42



DP15-0057 & DVP15-0056 – Page 4 

 
 

4.4 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RU1c ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Min. Lot Area 550m2 1486.44m2 

Min. Lot Width 16.5m 24.38m 

Min. Lot Depth 30m 60.96m 

Development Regulations 
Site Coverage 40% 18.92% 

Site Coverage: accessory 
buildings or structures and 
carriage house (one storey)  

20% 6.3% 

Floor area of carriage house 
(footprint) 

100m² 56.72m² 

Max. area of carriage house 
(total building area) 

130m² 93.65m² 

Max. net floor area of carriage 
house to total net floor area of 

principal building 
75% 49.91% 

Height 
(mid point of roof) 

4.8m 4.13m  

Setback from Principal Dwelling 3.0m 2.08m 

Carriage House Regulations 
Max. Height 4.8m 3.66m 

Min. Side Yard (north) 2.0m 2.3m 

Min. Rear Yard (west) 0.9m 21.64m 

Height (carriage house shall not 
be higher than existing primary 

dwelling unit) 
5.48m ex. House roof peak 4.88m Carriage house roof peak 

Other Regulations 
Minimum Parking Requirements 3 stalls 3 stalls 

Private Open Space 30 m2 30m2 

 Indicates a requested variance for separation distance  from the carriage house to the primary dwelling. 

5.0 Current Development Policies  

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Compact Urban Form.1 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular 
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1. 

                                                      
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter). 

43



DP15-0057 & DVP15-0056 – Page 5 

 
 

Sensitive Infill.2 Encourage new development or redevelopment in existing residential areas to 
be sensitive to or reflect the character of the neighborhood with respect to building design, 
height and siting. 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

1) Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any 
Building Permit(s)  

2) Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

See attached Memorandum dated February 10, 2015. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:  March 17, 2015  
Date Public Consultation Completed: June 1, 2015 
Date of Rezoning 2nd & 3rd Reading:  July 14, 2015  

Report prepared by: 

     
Lydia Korolchuk, Planner 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Planning Supervisor 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Ryan Smith, Community Planning Department Manager 
 

Attachments:  

Site Context Map 
Site Plan/ Landscape Plan – Schedule ‘A’ 
Floor Plans – Schedule ‘A’ 
Elevations – Schedule ‘B’ 
Development Engineering Memorandum 
Draft Development Permit – DP15-0057, DVP15-0056 
                                                      
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.22.6 (Development Process Chapter). 

44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: August 25, 2015 

RIM No. 0940-60 

To: City Manager 

From: Community Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (LB) 

Application: HAP15-0005 Owner: 
David Harold Beedle & Claire 
Elizabeth Beedle 

Address: 277 Mathison Place Applicant: Claire Beedle 

Subject: Heritage Alteration Permit Application  

Existing OCP Designation: S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: RU1 – Large Lot Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Heritage Alteration Permit No. HAP15-0005 for Lot 4, 
District Lot 14, ODYD, Plan 7769, located at 277 Mathison Place, Kelowna, BC, subject to the 
following: 

1. The dimensions and siting of the building to be constructed on the land be in general 
accordance with Schedule “A”; 

2. The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land be in general 
accordance with Schedule “B”; 

AND THAT variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted, as shown on 
Schedule “C”: 

Section 13.1.6(c): RU1 – Large Lot Housing Development Regulations 

To vary the minimum front yard from 4.5 m permitted to 3.0 m proposed. 

Section 13.1.6(d): RU1 – Large Lot Housing Development Regulations 

To vary the minimum side yard from a flanking street from 4.5 m permitted to 2.8 m 
proposed. 

AND FURTHER THAT this Heritage Alteration Permit is valid for two (2) years from the date of 
Council approval, with no opportunity to extend. 

  

52



HAP15-0005 – Page 2 

 
 

2.0 Purpose  

To consider a heritage Alteration Permit for the form and character of additions to an existing 
single detached house and avariances to reduce the minimum front and flanking street side yard 
setbacks. 

3.0 Community Planning  

Community Planning Staff supports the additions to the existing house and variances to the front 
and side yard setbacks. The additions complement the overall character of the house, build on its 
Colonial Revival features and are generally in keeping with the Heritage Conservation Area 
guidelines. The requested variances allow for more functional use of the property through the 
creation of a two car garage and further enhance the architectural style with the formal front 
entrance. 

Form and Character 

The additions are consistent with the characteristics of the Colonial Revival style identified for 
the property and they will enhance the formal nature of the house. Replacing the existing 
carport on the east side of the house will be a two car garage, symmetrically balanced by the 
addition of new living space on the west side of the house. The design features of the established 
style will be retained in the roof, window and entrance details. The existing exterior materials 
will be refinished and similar materials will be used on the new portions of the house. The new 
entry feature will add to the property’s formal character and create a more grand entrance 
consistent with the Colonial Revival style. 

 

Consideration has been given to the Heritage Conservation Area guidelines as identified in 
Chapter 16 of the City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, and the application generally meets 
the guidelines. Many of the guidelines regarding maintaining the established streetscape massing, 
setbacks and styles are not applicable because of the property’s specific context. It is the only 
property of the Colonial Revival style in the vicinity and is smaller than most of the surrounding 
properties at the end of Mathison Place and along Abbott Street.  

Although many of the mature trees on the property will be retained, the existing cedar hedge 
along Abbott Street is not in healthy condition and will be removed. A 1.8 m high solid fence is 
proposed along the Abbott Street and Mathison Place frontages, with gates for the driveway and 
walkway entrances. The guidelines for the Heritage Conservation Area include provisions for 

Proposed Changes and Additions to the Existing House 

53



HAP15-0005 – Page 3 

 
 

fencing to be less than 1 m in height, consistent with that of neighbouring properties and to have 
clear sightlines from the street to the dwelling. The property owner would like a higher fence to 
address privacy concerns with being a corner lot abutting the Abbott Street Recreational 
Corridor. 

Front and Side Yard Variances 

As per Section 2 of the Zoning Bylaw, the front lot line of a residential corner lot is the narrowest 
street frontage. In this case, the east lot line along Abbott Street is considered the front lot line 
and the north lot line along Mathison Place is a flanking street side lot line. The required setback 
for both the front and flanking street side yards is 4.5 m.  

Due to the existing location of 
the house, the applicant is 
requesting a variance to reduce 
the minimum front yard from 
4.5 m permitted to 3.0 m 
proposed. This will 
accommodate the addition of a 
two car garage on the east side 
of the property, replacing and 
expanding on the existing 
carport. The garage will be 
oriented towards Mathison 
Place and use the existing 
driveway access from Mathison 
Place. The side of the garage 
will face Abbott Street and the 
applicant has included windows 
at the top of the garage wall to 
improve this façade. 

To allow for the new entrance 
feature facing Mathison Place, 
the applicant is requesting a variance to reduce the minimum flanking street side yard from 4.5 
m permitted to 2.8 m proposed. This variance only applies to the new extended entry, which 
spans approximately 4 m (13 ft) in width along the Mathison Place frontage. 

Staff support the requested variances to accommodate the garage and entry feature, enhancing 
the heritage character of the property. No negative impacts to surrounding properties are 
anticipated since the variances are towards streets rather than other properties. 

In fulfillment of Council Policy No. 367 concerning public notification and consultation, the 
applicant contacted property owners within 50 m of the subject property with information about 
the proposed development. No concerns were identified through this consultation. At the time of 
writing, Staff has not been contacted with any questions or concerns regarding this application. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Project Description 

The applicant  is proposing to add onto the existing single detached house to create new and 
more functional living space as well as enhance the heritage character of the property. The main 
changes are as follows: 

Front 

lot line 

Side lot 

line 

Rear lot 

line 

Side lot line 

(flanking street) 

Front yard 

variance to 3.0 m 

Side yard variance 

to 2.8 m 

54



HAP15-0005 – Page 4 

 
 

 Build new living space on the west side of the house towards the rear of the property; 

 Convert the existing carport and add onto it to create a two car garage on the east side of 
the house towards the front of the property; 

 Extend and change the front entrance on the north side of the house towards the side of 
the property;  

 Add to the existing accessory structure on the west side of the property; and 

 Replace the existing hedges along the east and north property lines with a fence and 
gates that match the character of the house. 

The Abbott Street and Marshall Street Heritage Conservation Areas Development Guidelines 
identify the subject property as the Colonial Revival style, one of only two examples of this style 
outside of the Maple Street and Lake Avenue area. Defining characteristics of the Colonial Revival 
style include: 

 Stately feel to the architecture 

 High to medium gable roof forms 

 Horizontal lap-board siding 

 1 ½ and 2 storeys with attic massing 

 Grand entrance 

 Vertical double-hung window 
openings 

 Single and multi-sash window 
assembly 

 Window shutters 

 Multiple pane windows 

 Symmetrical front facades on formal 
homes 

 Grand front drive and rear yard 
parking 

The applicant is looking to enhance the architectural details of the house in keeping with the 
Colonial Revival style. 

4.2 Site Context 

The subject property is located at the southwest corner of the intersection of Abbott Street and 
Mathison Place in the Abbott Street Heritage Conservation Area and the Central City Sector. The 
property is designated S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential in the Official Community Plan. The 
surrounding area is a single dwelling housing residential neighbourhood. 

Adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single dwelling housing 

East RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single dwelling housing 

South RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single dwelling housing 

West RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single dwelling housing 

 

55



HAP15-0005 – Page 5 

 
 

Subject Property Map: 277 Mathison Place 

 

4.3 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RU1 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot 
Minimum Lot Area 550 m2 613.2 m2 

Minimum Lot Width 17.0 m 16.8 m 

Minimum Lot Depth 30.0 m 36.6 m 

Development Regulations 
Maximum Site Coverage 

(buildings) 
40% 33.1% 

Maximum Site Coverage 
(buildings, driveways and 

parking) 
50% 39.8% 

Maximum Height 9.5 m 7.1 m 

Minimum Front Yard 4.5 m 3.0 m  

Minimum Side Yard (south) 
2.0 m (1 or 1 ½ storey portion) 
2.3 m (2 or 2 ½ storey portion) 

2.0 m 
3.3 m 

Minimum Side Yard (north) 4.5 m (flanking street) 2.8 m  

Minimum Rear Yard 7.5 m 7.5 m 

Other Regulations 
Minimum Parking Requirements 2 stalls  

 Indicates a requested variance to reduce the minimum front yard from 4.5 m permitted to 3.0 m proposed. 

 Indicates a requested variance to reduce the minimum flanking street north side yard from 4.5 m permitted to 2.8 m proposed. 

  

56



HAP15-0005 – Page 6 

 
 

5.0 Current Development Policies  

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Heritage Conservation Area Guidelines 

Consideration has been given to the following guidelines as identified in Chapter 16 of the City of Kelowna 
Official Community Plan relating to Heritage Conservation Areas: 
 

HERITAGE CONSERVATION AREA YES NO N/A 

Site Layout and Parking    

Are established front yard setbacks maintained within 10% of neighbouring building 
setbacks? 

   

Are parking spaces and garages located in the rear yard?    

Are established building spacing patterns maintained?    

Does the carriage house complement the character of the principal dwelling?    

Are accessory buildings smaller than the principal building?    

Building Massing    

Is the established streetscape massing maintained?    

Is the massing of larger buildings reduced?    

Roof Forms, Dormers and Chimneys    

Is the roof pattern in keeping with neighbouring buildings?    

Are skylights hidden from public view?    

Are high quality, low maintenance roofing materials being used?    

Are the roofing materials similar to traditional materials?    

Are the soffit, overhang and rain water drainage features in keeping with the 
building’s architectural style? 

   

Do secondary roof elements have a similar pitch as the principal roof?    

Are chimneys in keeping with the building’s architectural style?    

Cladding Materials    

Are low maintenance building materials being used?    

Are the building materials similar to traditional materials?    

Are exterior colours in keeping with the traditional colours for the building’s 
architectural style? 

   

 
   

 
   

57



HAP15-0005 – Page 7 

 
 

HERITAGE CONSERVATION AREA YES NO N/A 

Doors and Windows    

Are established window placement, style and window-to-wall area ratios 
maintained? 

   

Are established door placement, style and door-to-wall area ratios maintained?    

Is the main entrance a dominant feature visible from the street?    

Is the main entrance in keeping with the building’s architectural style?    

Are the door and window design details consistent with the building’s architectural 
style? 

   

Landscaping, Walks and Fences    

Are existing healthy mature trees being retained?    

Is the front yard landscaping consistent with neighbouring properties?    

Is street facing fencing or screening landscaping no more than 1 m in height?    

Privacy and Shadowing Guidelines                                                               

Are there clear sightlines from the street to the front yard and dwelling?    

Does the building location minimize shadowing on the private open space of 
adjacent properties? 

   

 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 A Geotechnical Report is required to address the subsoil conditions and site drainage at 
time of Building Permit application.  

 This property falls within the Mill Creek Flood Plain Bylaw area and compliance is 
required. Minimum building elevations are required to be established prior to the release 
of the Heritage Alteration Permit. This minimum Geodetic elevation is required for all 
habitable spaces including garages. This building may be designed too low, which may 
affect the form and character of the building. 

 Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications. Please indicate how the requirements of Radon mitigation and NAFS are 
being applied to this structure at time of permit application.  

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

 See attached memorandum, dated June 23, 2015. 

7.0 Application Chronology 

Date of Application Received:  June 10, 2015  
Date Public Consultation Completed: July 18, 2015  

58



HAP15-0005 – Page 8 

 
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Laura Bentley, Planner 
 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Planning Supervisor 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Ryan Smith, Community Planning Department Manager 
 
 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 
Development Engineering Memorandum 
Draft Heritage Alteration Permit No. HAP15-0005 
Schedule A: Site Plan and Floor Plans 
Schedule B: Elevations and Colour Board 
Schedule C: Site Plan with Variances 

59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: August 25, 2015 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Community Planning Department (LG) 

Application: DVP15-0168 Owner: 
Doyle Avenue Holdings Ltd. 
Inc. No. BC1003539 

Address: 505 Doyle Ave Applicant: 
Gibbs Gage Architects (Eric 
Longchamp) 

Subject: Development Variance Permit Application 

Existing OCP Designation: MXR – Mixed Use (Residential / Commercial) 

Existing Zone: C7 – Central Business Commercial 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP15-0168 for Lot A, 
District Lot 139, ODYD Plan EPP25652 located at 505 Doyle Avenue, Kelowna, BC; 

AND THAT further variances to following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 

Section 14.7.5 (e) – C7 Development Regulations 

To vary the approved 3.00 m setback from a street requirement from 19 m to 21.14 m above 
grade (DVP14-0103 previously varied from 15 m above grade permitted to 19 m). 

Section 14.7.5 (h) – C7 Development Regulations 

To vary the approved maximum floor plate areas above 15 m from 1879 m2 to 2842 m2 on the 
fifth floor (DVP14-0103 previously varied from 676.0 m2 permitted to 1879 m2). 

Section 14.7.5 (i) – C7 Development Regulations (on the fifth floor) 

a) To vary the maximum continuous horizontal dimension above 15 m from 26 m allowed 
to 38.3 m proposed (east elevation); 

b) To vary the maximum continuous horizontal dimension above 15 m from 52 m allowed 
to 59.2 m proposed (north elevation) (DVP14-0103 previously varied from 26 m 
permitted to 52m); and 

c) To vary the maximum continuous horizontal dimension above 15 m from 54 m allowed 
to 65 m proposed (south elevation) (DVP14-0103 previously varied from 26 m 
permitted to 54 m). 

 

72



DVP15-0168 – Page 2 

 
 

Section 14.7.5 (j) – C7 Development Regulations 

To vary the maximum diagonal dimension of a floor plate above 15.0 m from 80 m to 90.2 m 
on the fifth floor (DVP14-0103 previously varied from 39.0 m permitted to 80 m). 

AND THAT Council considers the Public Consultation Process outlined in the Report from the 
Community Planning Department for DVP14-0103 dated August 19, 2014 to be appropriate 
consultation for the purpose of Section 879 of the Local Government Act; 

AND FURTHER THAT this Development Variance Permit is valid for two (2) years from the date of 
Council approval, with no opportunity to extend. 

2.0 Purpose 

To vary several regulations in the C7 zone for the subject property. 

3.0 Community Planning 

Community Planning supports the proposed variances for the Kelowna Community Health Services 
Centre (IHA Building) fifth floor expansion. The development regulations in the C7 zone were 
written to facilitate tall, narrow high-rises on small, downtown lots. This is evident in the 
maximum building height (44m) and the maximum floor area ratio (9) regulations. 

In this case, several lots were consolidated to allow for an office building that has large floor 
plates but lower height. The floor plates are larger than 676m2 as this allows for flexible and 
adaptable programming areas on each floor. In addition, the proposed building is approximately 
half of the allowed height in the zone which results in a more human-scale building from the 
outside pedestrian realm and the adjacent uses. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

The IHA Building was approved in 2014. Council approved the form and character development 
permit, as well as a development variance permit (DVP). The DVP was required to vary the C7 
rules to allow for the shape of the building. The development plans that were approved showed 
the fifth floor as future expansion area, and not to be built immediately. 

4.2 Project Description 

The applicants have now decided to complete the fifth floor construction at the same time as the 
rest of the building. The form and character of the building has not changed, and the new plans 
simply reflect that the area that was denoted for expansion is now finalized design. 

The finalized fifth floor area requires similar variances to those that were approved for the 
remainder of the building. 

While the applicant is seeking several variances for their proposal, they relate only to the shape 
of the fifth floor plate. As the C7 rules were written with tall, narrow buildings in mind, the 
proposed low rise building extends beyond the restrictive maximum dimensions. These include 
minimum setback, maximum floor plate area, and maximum diagonal width. 

4.3 Site Context 

The subject property is located at the southeast corner of Doyle Avenue and Ellis Street. 
Neighbouring the site is The Madison to the north, Memorial Arena to the west, and commercial 

73



DVP15-0168 – Page 3 

 
 

uses to the east and south. The site is located within the Central City Sector and the City Centre 
(Downtown) Urban Centre. 

 

 

 

 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North C7 – Central Business Commercial 
MXR – Mixed Use (Residential / 
Commercial) 

West 
P1 – Major Institutional, C7 – Central 
Business Commercial 

EDINST – Educational / Institutional 

East C4 – Urban Centre Commercial 
MXR – Mixed Use (Residential / 
Commercial) 

South 
C4 – Urban Centre Commercial, C7 – Central 
Business Commercial 

MXR – Mixed Use (Residential / 
Commercial) 

 

Subject Property Map: 
 

 

 

74



DVP15-0168 – Page 4 

 
 

 

 

 

 

5.0 Current Development Policies 

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Compact Urban Form.1 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular 
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1. 

Downtown Development.2 Support rezoning to C7 use in the downtown Urban Centre area only 
where properties are surrounded on a minimum of 3 sides by existing C7 zoning. The intent of 
this policy is to support intensification within the existing core areas of Downtown. 

Retention of Commercial Land.3 In order to ensure that the City’s commercial land supply is not 
eroded, where the OCP Bylaw 10500 indicated a commercial land use designation for the 
property, the expectation would be that there be no net loss of commercial space on the site as 
a result of the redevelopment to include other uses. 

Office Building Location.4 Encourage office buildings providing more than 929 m2 of useable 
space to locate in the City Centre or the Town Centres. This policy does not include offices 
integral to business park / industrial uses and “corporate offices” allowable under relevant 
industrial zones. 

6.0 Technical Comments 

No concerns. 

7.0 Application Chronology 

Date of Application Received:  July 22, 2015  

Report prepared by: 

     
Lindsey Ganczar, Planning Supervisor 
 
 

Reviewed by:    Ryan Smith, Community Planning Department Manager 
                                                      
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.3.2 (Development Process Chapter). 
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.3.4 (Development Process Chapter). 
3 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.24.2 (Development Process Chapter). 
4 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.25.2 (Development Process Chapter). 

75



DVP15-0168 – Page 5 

 
 

 

Attachments: 

Property Location Map 
Site Plan 
Conceptual Elevations 

76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85


	Agenda
	3. Draft Minutes - August 11 Public Hearing.pdf
	3. Draft Minutes - August 11 Regular Meeting.pdf
	4.1 BL11126 Z15-0029 Graham Road 1285.pdf
	4.2 BL11129 Z15-0020 Highway 33 East 1457.pdf
	6.1 Lawrence Ave 315 Report LL15-0012.pdf
	6.1 Lawrence Ave 315 Attachments LL15-0012.pdf
	7.1 BL11107 - Z15-0008 - Danny and Mary Cresswell - 902 Clifton Road.pdf
	7.2 Clifton Rd Report DP15-0057 DVP15-0056.pdf
	7.2 Clifton Rd 902 Attachments DP15-0057 DVP15-0056.pdf
	7.3 Mathison Pl 277 Report HAP15-0005.pdf
	7.3 Mathison Pl 277 Attachments HAP15-0005.pdf
	7.4 Doyle Ave 505 Report DVP15-0168.pdf
	7.4 Doyle Ave 505 Attachments DVP15-0168.pdf
	7.4 Development Variance Permit.pdf

